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Our Mission.
Nature’s mission is to be the world’s leading maritime and offshore waste oil service provider.
We have a proud tradition of collecting and treating maritime and offshore waste in a safe, environmentally
sound and socially responsible manner, and we aim to keep building on that tradition, offering sustainable,
innovative treatment methods and solutions to our customers worldwide.
We aim to lead the market not only in terms of our technologies, customer-focused products and global
services, but also through our key corporate principles of People, Planet and Performance. As the world’s
population continues to expand, waste will remain an important part of the overall value and supply chain –
but at the same time, today’s focus on climate change is driving an ever-increasing demand for renewable,
sustainable and environmentally friendly working methods and industry standards.
At Nature, we put safety, sustainability and environmental protection at the core of our business strategy.
Our mission is to maintain the clean, pollution-free seas required not only for regulatory compliance, but
also for the overall health of our natural environment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
2013 Financial Highlights
•
Revenues increased by 52% to £21.78m (2012: £14.30m)
•
Underlying EBITDA increased by 54% to £2.92m (2012: £1.90m)
•
Underlying Operating profit increased by 163% to £1.29m (2012: £0.49m)
•
Underlying Profit before tax increased by 172% to £1.28m (2012: £0.47m)
•
Underlying Earnings per share (“EPS”) increased by 129% to 1.10p (2012: 0.48p)
•
Free cash flow increased by 31% to £1.02m (2012: £0.78m)
•
Year-end cash balances increased by 57% to £3.63m (2012: £2.32m)
•
Proposed final dividend of 0.28p per share in respect of 2013 (2012: £Nil)

2013 Operational Highlights
Maritime:
•

Maintained our market share of the maritime liquid waste business in Gibraltar despite the lack of our own
onshore facility.

•

Following negotiations throughout 2013 we finally reached the £1.35m insurance settlement in March
2014 to cover material damage and business interruption following the Gibraltar accident recognised as
a Post Balance Sheet Event.

Oil & Gas:
•

Commissioned a further 5 Compact Treatment Units (CTUs) – 2 of which were sold to a third party.

•

In response to client demand, developed a specialist Sludge Treatment Unit (STU) and the second such
unit is close to build completion.

•

2 CTUs now operating in challenging conditions in Tanzania and Norwegian Arctic Circle.

Engineering:
•

Awarded contract to supply a maritime liquid waste treatment plant to the new Port of Sohar in Oman
likely to contribute in 2015.

•

Substantially completed the supply and build of a hydrocarbon waste treatment plant for the MOD in an
overseas territory as a subcontractor to Interserve Defence Ltd.

I am very pleased to announce the 2013 results for Nature Group PLC which reflect the good progress that
has been achieved in all 3 divisions – Maritime, Oil & Gas and Engineering. There have been challenges faced
in the Maritime Division as we invested to meet changes in legislation, and delays in bringing operations in
Gibraltar back online. However, with planning approval and the resolution of our insurance claim we can now
look forward to operations in the future with confidence.
2013 has been a year in which we have laid down the groundwork for our continued transformation into an
international and innovative business. We have made good progress in terms of bringing Gibraltar back on line,
reacted well to legislative changes and the performance of our Oil & Gas and Engineering divisions have been
encouraging.
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After a strong first half, we did, however, experience a more challenging second half of 2013, primarily as a
result of two factors. Firstly, the Maritime Division which continued to suffer from a lack of permanent port
storage and treatment facilities in Gibraltar and also experienced the additional charter hire costs of the new
chemical barges which could not be passed on to our customers. Secondly, in the Oil & Gas Division, the time
necessary to secure new contracts from the point at which these are first identified was longer than expected
due to the logistical issues for our customers in mobilising drilling rigs. Our forecasting for such contracts has
been amended as appropriate. The Chief Executive’s statement will cover these issues and other operational
factors in more detail.
The Board also took the strategic decision to write off approximately £12.9m of goodwill, which arose from the
acquisition of International Slop Disposal B.V in 2010 in order to ensure that the Consolidated Balance Sheet
more accurately reflects the net asset value of the Group as at year end. The detail of this non-cash technical
adjustment is covered in the Chief Financial Officer's statement.
In the 2012 Chairman’s Statement, we highlighted that a resolution of the issues surrounding the accident in
Gibraltar in 2011 would be a high priority. In July 2013, the Government of Gibraltar gave us the green light to
initiate the first stage of restarting operations and we submitted a planning application to rebuild the storage
tank area. Whilst the rapport with the Planning Committee was positive, the timescales were extended by the
need to prepare and submit an Environmental Impact Assessment, which achieved the right outcome when
final approval for storage only was received on 10 April 2014. Our recommendation to establish a Liaison
Committee to monitor our activities is likely to be adopted and we anticipate an early agenda item will be to
seek agreement to initiate treatment, after the storage area of the plant has been rebuilt and commissioned
which is anticipated to take 12 months.
In addition, we had maintained that the repudiation of our insurance claim for the Gibraltar accident by our
underwriters was not justified. With the support of our loss adjusters, Aon, we challenged this decision and
demonstrated that we had a legitimate claim, which culminated in the recently announced settlement of £1.35m
to contribute towards our material damage and business interruption losses. We are now considering possible
recourse actions against third parties in respect of the recovery shortfall.
Following a review of our 2013 performance, we have identified a number of initiatives aimed at the continued
strengthening and improvement of the business in 2014 and beyond. At the Board level, we are actively looking
to appoint additional non-executive directors with relevant experience to support the executive management
team and help guide the strategic development of the Company. Our decision to restructure the Company in
October 2013 into three clear divisions, being Maritime, Oil & Gas and Engineering has already improved
business focus. As part of the process we have started to strengthen the Executive management team with
the recent appointment of an experienced Port Operations Manager to lead the Maritime Division, and a new
General Manager to head up operations in Gibraltar.
Nature is now well positioned not only to ensure that we can provide our customers with services that are fully
compliant with environmental and waste disposal regulation but also to exploit the operational benefits that
future regulation will bring. Whilst 2013 undoubtedly required commitments that were fundamental to the
positioning of our divisional operations, we have used this opportunity to establish a platform from which we
can seek new opportunities in related activities and deliver shareholder value.
Nature Group’s future is strongly linked to establishing growth through a series of international development
projects. The current pipeline of developments includes; establishing a port reception facility joint venture at
Sohar in Oman, investments in Houston following the recent acquisition on 1 April 2014, and reconstruction of
the Gibraltar facility. In the Oil & Gas Division, developments include continuous improvements to the Compact
Treatment Units (CTUs), new Sludge Treatment Units (STUs), and research into new slop treatment chemicals.
This is a full and intensive programme, and we are excited by the opportunities each project offers. We have
also identified the need for a Senior Project Manager to ensure that our projects are delivered on time and to
budget.
Further steps we have taken to establish building blocks for the future include full accreditation in 2013 for ISO
9001 and 14001 for efficiency, quality and environmental compliance. Also, we were very pleased that we were
able to appoint Cenkos this year as our Nomad and Broker who more accurately represent our business
portfolio and strategic objectives.
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As Chairman, I travel regularly to our operations in Europe and further afield, including Houston, and I genuinely
recognise and am proud of Nature Group as a ‘can do’ business, well-illustrated by our Engineering Division in
taking on projects in Duqm Oman, and an overseas territory for the MOD where the working conditions can
best be described as both climatically challenging and remote from their base in Cornwall. I value the help,
support and commitment our executives give to Nature for which I thank them.
Finally, none of our plans could be achieved without the support of our shareholders and we are pleased to be
able to announce that we intend to pay a dividend of 25% of distributable profits* in line with our Dividend Policy.
Therefore, we are recommending a dividend of 0.28p per share which will be formally proposed at the AGM.

Nigel Sandy
Chairman
27 May 2014

*distributable profits is calculated as profit after tax adding back the gain recognised on disposal of interest in former
associate, the consolidated goodwill write off and the property damage insurance settlement.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
2013 – A year of further development
For the relatively small company that we are, our ambition is huge: building a worldwide network of Port
Reception Facilities to collect and treat maritime waste, and building a large pool of Compact Treatment Units
(CTUs) for treating offshore generated waste at any location throughout the world. Over the last year we have
made great progress with the development of Nature Houston and in Oman, where Nature won a tender for
the Port Reception Facility in the Port of Sohar. Our Oil & Gas division had a good year with a substantial
contribution to the bottom-line and further growth of our rental fleet. Alongside our CTUs, Nature has developed
a Sludge Treatment Unit for the treatment of waste with a high mud content. Finally our engineering division
capitalised on the wealth of knowledge and experience within the Group by winning a large order for the Ministry
of Defence (MOD) to build a waste treatment facility for one of the overseas territories.
I am therefore very pleased and excited by the development of the Group in 2013. Our financial performance,
has however, been challenged by changes in regulations in the Port of Rotterdam, and the obvious problems
created by the accident in Gibraltar which meant we were still unable to store and treat our collected waste
onshore at this port. I am pleased, however, at the progress that has now been made both in agreeing the
insurance settlement for the accident and the first steps we have achieved in the process of the plant
reconstruction. In addition, we have implemented a number of structural and operational changes to the Group
that should provide a platform for growth and allow us to fully exploit future opportunities.

Maritime Division
Dutch legislation changed on 1 January 2013, and after this date it was no longer permitted to collect low flash
chemical waste with a single hull barge; a double hull chemical barge was required. As the biggest chemical
waste collector in Rotterdam, Nature had to charter a double hull barge to support its customers. The operating
costs of running a double hull barge are significantly higher than that of a single hull barge. Nature expects to
be able to pass on the higher costs when we renew our current 1-3 year contracts with revised contracted
tariffs over the coming periods. Despite the change, Nature was able to collect a similar volume as in 2012
(160,000m3), which was also achieved against an 8% reduction in the number of vessel calls to Rotterdam in
2013.
Our Port Reception Facility in Gibraltar continued to serve vessels, but without agreement from the Gibraltar
Government to rebuild the tanks, all collected waste had to be transported to a third party for treatment. I am
happy to announce, that the Government of Gibraltar has approved the rebuild of Nature tanks at the North
Mole. The rebuild time is expected to take one year.
With close to 29,000m3 collected, the volume was comparable to last year, but at a reduced margin due to
both a lower recycled oil percentage than anticipated and the higher transport costs to have the waste treated
at a third party site. The low recycled oil availability had an impact on Nature Portugal that led to a shortage of
oil to serve its customers. The upgraded recycling facility could have received at least 5 times the volume we
sent in 2013. We hope to more fully utilise this capacity in 2014.
During the year, we undertook a contract with the Government of Gibraltar (GoG) to transport contaminated
dredged material to the Netherlands for treatment. Although the initial tender documents showed a low moisture
content for the product, which was supported by analysis reports from samples we had received, the dredged
material we received to transport and treat was completely different, with a much higher moisture level. This
resulted in significantly higher costs, and we are engaged in active discussions with the GoG to review the
operational issues and recover the additional costs incurred. We found it prudent to provide against this contract
in 2013.
Our strategy to expand our network of Port Reception Facilities resulted in the award of a tender for the Port
of Sohar in Oman where Nature has won a ten year license with a JV partner to be the sole waste collection
and treatment operator in the Port. This contract will be underwritten by the Port of Sohar to ensure a smooth
start of the operation in 2015. Next to this new development we have worked hard to set up Nature
Environmental and Maritime Services (“NEMS”), which acquired the activities of a local waste collector Global
Environmental and Maritime Services (GEMS) which operates on the Gulf Coast between Houston and Corpus
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Christi. The new company is committed to upgrade the GEMS facility and logistics operation. NEMS is expected
to make a positive contribution to Nature's financial performance in 2014.
To support further growth we have strengthened our management team with the appointment of a Senior
Manager to lead the Maritime Division and a new General Manager in Gibraltar.
Oil & Gas Division
We are pleased to see that the time we have committed to developing our Compact Treatment Unit (“CTU”) is
starting to contribute to Nature’s financial results. In 2014, we had two units at 100% operation with long-term
contracts; one unit in Tanzania to support Statoil's local operation, and one unit in the Barents Sea supporting
a Seadrill drillship. Next to these continuous operations we also had multiple projects on the West Navigator
for Seadrill in the North Sea and for Ocean Rig in Brazil. The efficient operating performance we were able to
achieve with our units also resulted in a three year contract with Sevan Drilling and Seadrill in Brazil.
Nature’s unique CTU is perfectly suited to treat offshore-generated wastewaters, but we also receive requests
to treat more “muddy” types of water. For this purpose, we developed a Sludge Treatment Unit (“STU”), which
is also a containerised unit and will be a pre-treatment operation for the reduction in large particle sizes prior to
the CTU operation to “polish” the water and discharge to the sea. One unit is currently operational together
with our CTU in the Barents Sea. As we were looking more into the treatment of mud and/or muddy water, we
were asked by Maersk Oil to help them with a “mud problem” they faced with their drilling operations in Qatar.
We were hired by Maersk Oil to find or develop a chemical to treat their waste together with a STU and/or CTU.
During the year, we found several potential solutions and we expect to be testing onsite in Qatar in the third
quarter of 2014.
To further develop our offering to the Oil and Gas market and support our growing operations worldwide, we
have also invested in our management team and organisation. In addition to a new and experienced Chief
Technology Officer, we also hired a Sales Director. We are committed to building our contract pipeline and are
looking into new markets both geographically, for example the Gulf of Mexico, as well as new applications for
our products in the new build rig market.
Engineering Division
Our unique experience and knowledge for not only building but also operating waste treatment facilities resulted
in the award of a significant contract to build a specially designed waste treatment facility for Interserve Defence
Limited on behalf of the Ministry of Defence (MOD) in an overseas territory. The design and construction has
been modular, and jointly built in Norway and the UK before shipment. Following successful implementation of
these facilities, we were subsequently contracted for the provision of the civil works at this location. The
treatment facility will be completed in the second quarter of 2014 and Nature is also awaiting the outcome of
its bid to operate the facility once operational. Nature's Engineering Division has benefitted from the experience
in building compact treatment units gained in our Oil and Gas Division, a great synergy within the Group and
we look forward to similar cross selling and product development opportunities in future. Nature’s own new
developments in Houston and Oman will also use the experience gained from this project with new waste
treatment solutions. The rebuild of Gibraltar will also be led by our Engineering Division. Next to supporting our
“own” projects, we have also received many requests from third parties for specifically designed waste treatment
solutions, these are being explored, but no new contracts have yet been signed.
Conclusion
Nature is a development company, where “during the building phase, sales must continue”. With new
developments in different time zones our goal of an international network is getting closer, but we are
continuously innovating and reacting to both challenges and opportunities. Nature is still the only company
developing a worldwide network of Port Reception Facilities and we are convinced this creates unique value.
Our compact units for offshore treatment are performing well and we believe are the future in this sector. Our
ambition remains “Clean Seas, made possible by Nature!”
Andreas Drenthen, M.Sc.
CEO
27 May 2014
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
Throughout 2013 we have faced a number of market challenges, however, I am pleased to report on our financial
statements, which I believe demonstrate the resilience of our fundamental business model and the Group’s
strategy. Accordingly we have been able to grow our sales.
Our divisional results show a marked increase in revenue in all our divisions:
Revenue By Division
Maritime
Oil & Gas
Engineering

2013

2012

£13.40m
£4.62m
£3.76m

£11.30m
£2.31m
£0.69m

This did not translate consistently to trading profit, which, after a good first half of the year, suffered in the
second half largely due to margin attrition in our Maritime Division brought about by the introduction of the new
legislation at the beginning of the year in the Netherlands which required double hull barges to be used and
has meant higher operating costs in Rotterdam and the continued lack of storage and treatment facilities in
Gibraltar.
The Oil & Gas Division, has, however, performed better than expected and has demonstrated an increasingly
predictable stream of rental income which is subject to longer term client contracts. However some such
contracts have, taken longer to finalise than had been anticipated and therefore a significant amount of income
which had initially been expected to fall into the 2013 financial year is not expected to be received until Q3 2014.
The Engineering Division has performed very well in 2013 largely due to the project it undertook for the Ministry
of Defence. There is still some project income to be recognised in 2014, but the majority of the revenue has
been reported in 2013. The experience gained by the division has meant that it has received a number of
enquiries for the design and build of specific waste treatment solutions for third parties that are being explored,
and we look forward to pursuing these opportunities.
We have continued in 2013 to invest in the business and to put in place a structure suited to our increasingly
international operations which now includes Houston USA and Sohar Oman later in the year, and for the
continued expansion of our Oil and Gas Division.
Consequently our underlying EBITDA for 2013 was £2.92m, 54% higher than our 2012 EBITDA of £1.90m,
and our underlying profit before tax was, prior to one-off costs and adjustments, £1.28m, which means a 172%
increase compared to our results in 2012 of £0.47m.
Total trading revenues for the year were £21.78m compared to £14.30m in 2012, an increase of 52% and our
free cash flow was £1.02m compared to £0.78m (2012), a 31% increase, with bank balances at the year-end
standing at £3.63m compared to £2.32m (2012), a 57% increase.

Maritime Division
The Maritime Division suffered the most in 2013. Nature International Slop Disposal B.V (NISD) in Rotterdam,
has seen its waste categories Annex I/II/IV revenues decline in the second half of the year by an average of
approximately 45% compared to the first half of the year, however, overall revenues for the whole of 2013 were
up 6% when compared to 2012, £7.23m versus £6.83m. Encouragingly, this is despite a decline in the number
of calls of sea-going vessels of 8% in the Port of Rotterdam and increased competition. These tougher market
conditions remain present to date in 2014, but there is some expectation of an improvement at the end of the
year in trading conditions and also an improvement through an increased marketing drive with our current and
prospective customers in each of the Amsterdam, Rotterdam and Antwerp regions and Hamburg Germany.
Also of note for NISD, as mentioned earlier, was the introduction of new legislation at the beginning of the year
in the Netherlands which has meant higher operating costs which, although expected to continue for the
foreseeable future whilst old contracts are still in operation, we will try to recover as soon as possible.
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The South West Europe region of our Maritime Division includes Nature PRF Gibraltar Ltd (NPRF Gibraltar),
Nature PRF Portugal – Serviços Maritimos Ambientais S.A (NPRF Portugal) and Crystalwater Navigation Ltd
(CWN). The high operating costs for the continued use of the M/V Crystalwater for collection and storage
purposes in Gibraltar in order to continue to give a good service to our customers has been felt again in 2013.
This is despite efforts to streamline our logistical costs in the region and our search for high oil content cargoes
to help cover operating costs. Accordingly, we have been able to maintain our volumes and customers at the
previous year’s levels and we expect to take advantage of this as and when our facility in Gibraltar comes back
on line. This situation has also meant that the income the M/V Crystalwater could receive from undertaking
third party cargoes has been significantly reduced, thus affecting our bottom line. This problem will of course
be remedied once NPRF Gibraltar’s reception facilities have commenced operations, which we expect to be
some time in Q2 of 2015.
Despite the fact that we collected 29,000 tonnes of waste oil in 2013, which is similar to 2011 volumes, this
tonnage is 30% lower than 2012. There was a loss of volume in the Port of Gibraltar of circa 30,000 tonnes
due to lack of storage or collection capacity. NPRF Gibraltar's revenues were maintained in 2013, with reception
and oil sale revenues coming in at £2.38m, the same revenue as last year, but its overall trading result has been
adversely affected by the loss of £0.82m on a dredging contract which we have prudently provided for whilst
we continue in negotiations with the Government of Gibraltar for compensation of the extra costs incurred.
NPRF Portugal, which depends almost entirely on the supply of waste oil from NPRF Gibraltar performed below
expectations for the same reasons NPRF Gibraltar faced difficulties in the year. This year NPRF Portugal will
give more focus to acquiring third party cargoes, which give a better return.

Oil & Gas Division
The Oil & Gas division performed better than budgeted in 2013 on all counts, resulting in its overall revenue
being up by 20% versus budget (£4.62m v £3.85m) and 100% compared to 2012 results (£2.31m), with PBT
at £0.70m versus £0.49m budgeted and £0.03m in 2012. The sale and delivery of two CTUs to IKM Gruppen
from Norway had a very positive impact on the revenue and PBT results of the division in the first half of the
year.
The division has been able to gain some traction in a market which continues to be conservative to operational
change, but we believe we can capitalise on the opportunities through continued business development and
familiarisation with our CTU solution. The biggest difference this year has been the long-term nature of the
purchase orders it has received, which has meant, as expected, a steadier stream of rental income. We expect
this rental income to continue to increase both in the number of CTUs rented, and the continued predictability
and longer term nature of the purchase orders. We have a number of contracts scheduled for 2014, which we
hope will bear fruit in the current financial year and thereafter.

Engineering Division
We have been very pleased with the performance of the Engineering division in 2013 with revenues of £3.76m
and PBT of £1.30m versus £0.69m and £-0.13m respectively for 2012. The contract with Interserve Defence
Ltd, on behalf of the MOD has progressed as planned and at the budgeted profit margin. The main project
regarding treatment plant construction has almost been completed, with the civil engineering elements relating
to the project at almost the half way point.

Financial Adjustments
After consultation with our auditors and extensive discussion by the Board we have decided to write off the
consolidated goodwill created when Nature Group Plc merged with International Slop Disposal B.V. It was
agreed that the large balance sheet item did not reflect real intrinsic value and somewhat distorted the true net
asset value of the company. In line with IFRS accounting rules the total write off has to go through the profit
and loss account and not straight to reserves. Although in reality your Board consider this to be a non-cash
adjustment to share capital, being the amount of the premium of the value at which the shares were issued in
2010 over NISD’s net tangible asset value. Therefore, for the purposes of comparison, we have shown the
underlying EPS omitting the goodwill write off.
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As reported on 24 April 2014, after extensive negotiations with our business interruption and property damage
insurers we secured a settlement of our claim totalling £1.35m, £0.89m for business interruption which has
been treated as trading income for underlying profit purposes, and £0.46m for property damage as other
revenue and not part of underlying profit. We have also reported that we had prudently made a provision for
£0.82m against the contract carried out for the Government of Gibraltar as mentioned above.
Lastly, as previously reported in our unaudited interim results to 30 June 2013 all underlying results exclude the
sale of SART our associate company in Norway, which resulted in a gain on disposal of our 40% interest in the
former company of £0.88m.
Exceptional one-off expenses, totalling £0.39m, include £0.21m on legal and professional fees in relation to
the acquisition of Global Environmental Marine Services Inc. (GEMS) and the set up of Nature Environmental
Marine Services Inc. (NEMS), our new operation in Houston, which officially started on the 1st April 2014. The
loss on sale of two barges in our Rotterdam operation totalling £0.06m and the professional fees in relation to
our business interruption and property damage claim with our insurers which amount to £0.07m.

Administrative Costs
The level of group overhead has been kept at the same level in 2013 as that of 2012, being £1.61m, supporting
the Company’s growth strategy and providing the resources needed to continue to build a professional and
compliant business. The main focus of this expenditure has centred around hiring and retaining the
administrative and consulting staff in Nature Oil and Gas Norway, to aid in the expansion of our CTU business.

Cash & Capital Expenditure
Nature’s free cash flow has been steady throughout 2013 given the cash generative nature of our businesses
resulting in the increase of the free cash flow by £0.24m or 31% compared to 2012. After months of negotiations
Nature Group Plc entered into a finance agreement with Lombard (Gibraltar) for a net £1m facility, currently on
a short-term three month rollover.
The incident in Gibraltar has required continued work during 2013 as part of the basic repairs and maintenance,
clean up and decommissioning, in anticipation of its reconstruction which has amounted to an additional
capitalised spend of £0.20m.
Other significant areas of capital expenditure include £0.98m spent on CTUs and ancillary equipment, £0.14m
was spent on capitalised works carried out on the M/V Crystalwater and Rotterdam barges.
During the year, NISD disposed of two of its old barges at a loss on disposal of £0.07m.

Looking Ahead
Although we have faced challenges within our business in 2013, we continue to be financially robust, with
opportunities for 2014 and beyond coming from:
•

our expertise in both design and construction of waste treatment facilities now seeing use in a number of
key international ports;

•

our expansion into Houston and Sohar as we continue to develop as an international leader with a strategic
network for the reception and treatment of waste oil in the maritime industry; and

•

the continued penetration of our CTUs in the oil and gas market, we expect to remain at the forefront of
the drilling and production waste treatment in the oil and gas industry.

Kieron Becerra FCCA
CFO
27 May 2014
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors of Nature Group plc (“the Company” or, together with its subsidiaries, “the Group”) present their
Report for the year ended 31 December 2013 together with the financial statements of the Group and the
independent auditor’s report for the year. These will be laid before the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting to be held as set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting on page 45.

Results
These financial statements are consolidated with the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries as listed on page
38. The consolidated loss for the year after taxation is set out on page 25 and is transferred to reserves.

Dividends
As reflected in the Chairman’s Statement we intend to pay a dividend of 25% of distributable profits. Distributable
profit is calculated as profit after tax adding back the gain recognised on disposal of interest in former associate,
the consolidated goodwill write off and the property damage insurance settlement, in line with our Dividend Policy.
Therefore, we are recommending a dividend of 0.28p per share which will be formally proposed at the AGM.

Principal activities
The Company’s principal activity is that of a holding company for group companies providing reception and
treatment services for oily and polluted wastewaters, the ownership and application of intellectual and proprietary
rights related to such treatment, and the provision of reception and treatment plants for oily waste in onshore
and offshore locations.

Share capital
Since 31 December 2013 no further options have been approved. Therefore there remain 79,280,655 Ordinary
Shares of 0.2p each in issue as at the date of this report.

Directors
The directors who served during the year and to date, and their interests in the issued Ordinary Share capital
of the Company were as follows:
At 27 May 2014
Ordinary Shares

At 31 December 2013
Ordinary Shares

At 31 December 2012
Ordinary Shares

4,750,000
12,015,250
50,000
3,064,883
350,500
675,000

4,750,000
12,015,250
50,000
3,064,883
350,500
675,000

4,750,000
12,000,000
50,000
3,064,883
350,500
675,000

A Drenthen*
D P Laguea**
K Becerra
C P Fairweather
N D Sandy
P Snell

Note:
P Snell is also interested in 200,000 Ordinary Shares held by a company in which he is a minority shareholder.

*The interests of A Drenthen are held through Port Invest BV, which owned 19,000,000 shares as at
31 December 2013. Mr Drenthen owns 25% of Port Invest BV and his shareholdings above reflect such
attributable share of the holding in the Company.
**D P Laguea resigned on 1 January 2014.
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On a fully diluted basis assuming all option instruments were exercised, the percentage of issued Ordinary
Share capital held by directors at 27 May 2014 would be as follows:
Port Invest BV (25% owned by A Drenthen)
K Becerra
N D Sandy
C P Fairweather
P Snell

23.97%
0.06%
0.44%
3.86%
0.85%

Other substantial interests as at 27 May 2014

Nortrust Nominees Limited
Legal & General Group PLC
HSBC Global Custody
Nominee (UK) Ltd

Options
Warrants or % holding if all
Derivatives
instruments
held
exercised

Ordinary
Shares held

% of issued
Share Capital

12,884,913
3,190,834

16.25%
4.02%

Nil
Nil

16.25%
4.02%

3,000,000

3.78%

Nil

3.78%

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
These financial statements were prepared under IFRS and interpretations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Independent auditor
Deloitte Limited have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed independent auditors for the following year.
A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Limited as independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the directors
to agree their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting
The Notice of the Annual General Meeting to be held on 18 June 2014 is set out on page 45.
By Order of the Board
J Shalders
Company Secretary
Ordnance House
31 Pier Road
St. Helier
Jersey
27 May 2014
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The financial statements are
required by law to be properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.
International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of
the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria
for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board’s
‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements’. In virtually all circumstances, a fair
presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs. However, the directors are also required to:
•

properly select and apply accounting policies;

•

present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information;

•

provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

•

make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Provision of
services,
offices and
Remuneration
equipment
£
£
A Drenthen
D P Laguea*
K Becerra
P Snell
N D A Sandy
C P Fairweather

–
201,550
97,150
26,733
43,533
25,200

209,871
–
–
–
–
–

Total
£
209,871
201,550
97,150
26,733
43,533
25,200

Note: The sum of £5,333 (2012: £19,841) paid in respect of the services of R A Eldridge and the provision of offices
and equipment is disclosed in Note 17 as related party transactions. The executive directors of Nature Group plc
are not entitled to any bonuses on Group results as at 31 December 2013.
*D P Laguea resigned on 1 January 2014.
No directors receive benefits in the form of pensions contributions, save for statutory national employment
deductions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Nature has appointed a team of directors and senior managers who secure the continuation and monitoring of
our daily operations, business assurance and financial stability. In 2013 the following directors and senior
managers either continue, or were appointed to their positions and led by example:
–

Andreas Drenthen, Sales Director and CEO

–

Darren Laguea, Group Managing Director and COO (resigned 1 January 2014)

–

Kieron Becerra, Chief Financial Officer

–

Stig Feyling, Managing Director Oil & Gas Division

–

Rene van der Wolf, Managing Director Maritime Division

–

Arjan Donatz, Chief Support Officer/Compliance Director (resigned 31 September 2013)

–

Liz Bignell, QHSE Manager (appointed 1 October 2013)

In order to ensure effective leadership and apply the governance rules related to a public company the
executives are led by Andreas Drenthen, supported by Nigel Sandy, non-executive chairman, who is the
interactive link between the non-executives and executive members of the Board of Directors.
The Board recognises its obligation to strive towards the long-term success of the company through
entrepreneurial leadership, the setting of strategic aims, and will ensure that this is achieved through prudent
and effective controls combined with the resources to meet its objectives, and the implementation of risk
management on projects.
As a result of the corporate governance review performed in 2011 the Company continues to have a
nominations committee, a remuneration committee and a risk and audit committee, whose members consist
of the non-executive board members.
Nature’s board of directors and executive team are committed to operating in an open and transparent manner
and will ensure that their obligations to their shareholders are maintained through satisfactory dialogue,
announcements and for smaller investors the AGM. The use of shareholder resolutions or other mechanisms
for enabling minority shareholders are ruled by our Company’s articles of association.
Details of the directors’ beneficial interests in Ordinary Shares are set out in the Directors’ Report. The directors
intend to comply with Rule 21 of the AIM Rules relating to directors’ dealings and will take all reasonable steps
to ensure compliance by any employees of the Company to whom Rule 21 applies. The Company has, in
addition, adopted the Share Dealing Code for dealings in its Ordinary Shares by directors and senior employees.
We also commit ourselves to engage with our employees, to communicate our strategy and install appropriate
bodies or work councils when needed to ensure their representation within the Company’s structure. The
Company will continue to monitor its compliance with the latest corporate governance guidelines and welcomes
comments.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
PRINCIPLES & POLICY
The word that best describes the culture we aim for within Nature is “CARE”, to reflect the way we see ourselves
fulfilling our responsibilities and protecting the environment.

C

Compliance with all relevant legislation & requirements.
Consideration for all that can be affected by our actions.

A

Accountability for our actions & to all our stakeholders.
Achievement of objectives & goals, set to improve our
performance in all aspects.

R

Respect for our colleagues, stakeholders & the company’s
assets.
Responsibility to maintain the highest standards of quality,

E

Ethical standards of conduct & ensuring fulfilment of our duty of
care.
Enjoyment of all those who work with & for Nature.

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) is a concept firmly embedded in our culture. At Nature, we put quality,
safety and environmental protection at the core of our business strategy. We believe in having a positive impact
on everything associated with our business: our employees, clients, suppliers, investors, shareholders,
communities, the environment and society at large.
Nature’s principles and policies echo our commitment to compliance, each other and our communities. Our
principles and policies are published in a Principles Booklet, which is distributed to all employees and is available
through our website: www.ngrp.com.
Established in our principles (binding for all Nature employees) is our commitment to:
•

Health and safety

•

Quality assurance

•

Environmental protection

•

Customer satisfaction

•

Compliance and transparency

•

Innovation and sustainable solutions

•

Stakeholder engagement and communication

•

Leadership, personal responsibility and development

•

Local communities and society at large

Nature is committed to providing healthy workplaces and strives for zero accidents and incidents. Nature also
aims to reduce the use of natural resources and minimise environmental pollution in all its forms.
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RESPONSIBILITIES
Our responsibilities are focused on the maintenance of the highest standards for quality, health and safety and
environmental protection. Nature complies with local and international law plus other applicable legal regulations,
customer requirements and recognised guidelines. Where possible we actively support and endorse better
regulations and anticipate future regulations, locally and globally to improve our standards, procedures and
performance.
Nature ensures continuous and consistent business assurance through its Group management system, which
is adopted by all operational Nature entities. The system is defined by strong legal compliance, risk management
policies and guidelines, which enable a disciplined approach to improving the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations and services to achieve and maintain sustainable business growth and deliver optimal performance.
Following successful initial certification to ISO 9001:2008 (quality) and ISO 14001:2004
(environmental) management standards in February 2013, Nature has continued to build
and implement the management system throughout the Group. Certification was maintained
following the external audit completed by DNV GL in February 2014.
Nature’s EcoScrub Solutions (ESS) was also successfully certified to SCC (Safety, Health
and the Environment (SHE) Checklist Contractors) in April 2013. The SCC is a versatile and comprehensive
programme for testing and certifying the SHE management systems of a company and is applicable across
engineering sectors and to engineering service providers. For further information go to http://english.vca.nl.

ALLIANCES
Alliances are made in order to establish partnerships, improve standards and support education and research
surrounding our technology.

Euroshore
Euroshore is an international trade association of port reception facility providers. The main objectives of the
association are to promote and further the interests of companies that are active in the provision of ship waste
management by:
•

Promoting the use of its members’ port reception facilities.

•

Promoting the efficient and environmentally sound disposal of ship-generated
waste.

•

Promoting healthy and fair competition.

•

Promoting relevant international policy, procedures and standards of competence
for the collection and processing of ship-generated waste.

Through Euroshore membership, members remain appropriately informed and capable of providing the shipping
industry with adequate and environmentally sound waste management services. [Source: www.euroshore.com]

Achilles
Achilles works to identify, qualify, evaluate, and monitor suppliers on behalf of major organisations worldwide.
They build and support buyer-supplier communities in many industry sectors, creating unique and powerful
global networks offering sustainable procurement and reduced supply chain risk.
Nature Oil and Gas AS continues to be a registered supplier in the Achilles database, demonstrating the effective
implementation of policies and procedures which create business opportunities and reduce risks in the
supply chain.
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EBIS
The European Barge Inspection Scheme (EBIS) was developed by oil and chemical companies as part of their
commitment to improving the safety of tanker barging operations. The main aim of EBIS is to exchange objective
safety and quality data on tank barges, of which an EBIS member company may consider the use or the
reception of at its terminal. [Source: www.ebis.nl]
Four of the ten barges of Nature International Slop Disposal (NISD) have been inspected and meet the
requirements laid down by EBIS. This is the result of periodical internal pre-inspections, along with official and
documented annual inspections, executed by independent EBIS inspectors.

Green Award
Green Award certifies ships that are “extra clean and extra safe”. The Green Award procedure is carried out by
the Bureau Green Award, the executive body of the independent non-profit Green Award Foundation. In addition
to the recognition of high safety and environmental standards, Green Award ships are entitled to various financial
and non-financial benefits. By rewarding high safety and environmental standards in shipping, the programme
makes above-standard ship operation more attractive economically. The Green Award certification scheme is
open to oil tankers, chemical tankers and dry bulk carriers from 20,000 DWT and upwards, as well as LNG
carriers and inland navigation vessels. [Source: www.greenaward.org]
The certification procedure consists of an office audit and an audit of each individual
ship applying for certification. Amongst many other aspects, the assessment focuses
on crew, operational, environmental and managerial elements. 2013 saw Nature
International Slop Disposal (NISD) gain Green Award certification for the Hydrovac 10,
the third vessel of our Hydrovac fleet to achieve certification, resulting in successful
certification of all eligible vessels in our Rotterdam fleet.

GIVING
Nature actively supports various charities and initiatives, which are involved with environmental concerns, human
health issues, community support, education and technological developments. The following sections provide
a brief insight into a few of the schemes sponsored by Nature Group.

Community Involvement
Nature recognises that it has an influence on, and a responsibility towards, the communities in which it operates.
As a consequence, we make it a key element of our mission to be actively and positively involved in these
communities. In 2013 Nature supported (through donation and active participation) numerous local causes
including sporting events, sponsorship of sports teams or individuals, and the support of local human health
charities.

Educational Initiatives
In 2013 Nature Group actively participated in two schemes to support education in less affluent regions of the
world: The Florentina Foundation – Tanzania and Street Child – Sierra Leone.
The Florentina Foundation supports education initiatives in Tanzania, in particular the
Elisabeth Center for open education located in Kolila Village. Nature have continued their
support of this valuable work through sponsorship and active participation. [Source:
www.florentinafoundation.org]
Street Child is a UK charity, which aims to provide educational opportunities to some of the
most vulnerable children in West Africa. In 2013, one of our employees ran the half
marathon in Sierra Leone to raise funds and awareness for this worthwhile cause. [See
www.street-child.co.uk for more details]
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The Plastic Soup Foundation
Plastic waste in our oceans leads to damaging
environments for marine ecosystems due to the
release of toxins from plastics and their
non-biodegradability. The Plastic Soup Foundation
(PSF) aims to bring a halt to the increasing plastic
pollution of marine environments and to support the
removal of plastic waste already deposited on
beaches and in aquatic environments.
[Source: http://plasticsoupfoundation.org/eng]
In September 2013, Nature Group joined forces
with other companies in the Port of Rotterdam to
support an initiative to reclaim oil from plastic waste.
According to research, on average, out of 100kg of
plastic a whole barrel of oil can be reclaimed, which is about half of the amount that was used in the production
of the plastic. The “Collect Your Own Fuel” initiative aims to close the plastic cycle in the Port of Rotterdam, by
requiring that all vessels visiting the port separate their plastic waste and transfer it to an authorised waste
collector. Suitable plastics will then be processed into oil, which in turn will be refined into a useable fuel.

Performance Figures 2013
Our financial, operational, environmental, health and safety and human resource figures are monitored and
reported on an on-going basis throughout the Group. There are however some indicators which cannot be
directly measured. CO2 emissions attributed to all types of travel and transport, energy, water and paper use
are calculated using conversion factors.
EcoChain, an online carbon footprint tool, was used for calculating our carbon footprint. EcoChain’s calculations
are based on Defra (the UK Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs) guidelines and greenhouse
gas conversion factors for company reporting. For further information go to www.ecochain.com.
When making the carbon footprint calculation, it was not always possible to work with figures measured directly.
Due to our Portugal offices being in shared premises, their electricity, water and paper consumption were
calculated using a comparison method with other Nature offices. Operational performance indicators are
monitored throughout the use of our rented Ecoscrub units and containerised treatment units, however, the
reporting of energy consumption is the responsibility of the customer/client.

20

Report and accounts 2013

The following table details Nature Group’s non-financial performance figures for 2013.

Operational
Collected volumes – Maritime Division
Treated volumes – Oil & Gas Division
Total volumes

m3
m3
m3

229,776
19,169
248,945

#
litres
litres
kWh
m3
km
km
m3
kg
tCO2e

–
877,015
6,110
343,279
5,964
1,346,086
419,418
491
927
3,501

#
#

2
–

#
#
%
%
hrs
hrs

84
8
6
10
8
25

Environmental
Significant environmental incidents / spills
Fuel for vessels (gas oil / diesel)
Fuel for operational / transportation vehicles (diesel / petrol)
Electricity
Gas
Business flights
Commute / business travel by road / rail
Water use
Paper consumption
Carbon Footprint

Health & Safety
Major / specified injuries reportable under RIDDOR 1995 / 2013
Dangerous occurrences reportable under RIDDOR 1995 / 2013

Employees
Number of employees (as at 31/12/2013)
New staff
Turnover rate
Female employees
Average number external training hours per employee
Average number internal training hours per employee

Operational Performance
2013 figures show a slight increase in the number of seagoing and inland vessel collection volumes compared
to 2012 (224,528m3). 2013 saw the volumes treated by our compact treatment units rise by just over 216%,
attributable to the major contracts our Oil & Gas Division has received this year and continued market
acceptance of our solution.

Environmental Performance
Our strict operational standards have ensured that we have not been accountable for any significant
environmental incidents occurring during 2013. We have encountered a small number of minor spills, which
have been reported and investigated using our new incident management system. Through the reporting and
follow-up of such incidents, we ensure steps are taken to reduce the likelihood of such events reoccurring in
the future.
Nature has again opted to calculate their carbon footprint, based on core operations, office activities and travel.
This carbon footprint does not currently account for the manufacture or transport of materials, thus project
emissions account for office activities and travel only. Our 2013 carbon footprint shows a reduction from 2012
(3,894 tCO2e), which is in large part attributable to reduced fuel usage in our vessels. This reduced usage can
be associated with the reduced movement of our two barges in Gibraltar, coupled with reduced sailing of the
M/V Crystalwater. It must however be noted that these reduced movements have not impacted on the collected
volumes, which have shown an increase on 2012 figures.
Nature strives to keep carbon emissions minimal in all areas. By tracking energy and resource use, travel and
transport, we are able to focus our efforts in emission reduction appropriately.
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Health & Safety
In reporting our health and safety record, we have chosen to indicate incidents according to the UK RIDDOR
(Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013, which replaced the 1995
regulations in October 2013) reporting requirements. By categorising our incidents using RIDDOR, we ensure
a consistent reporting methodology enabling comparisons to be drawn where appropriate.
Under the RIDDOR classification, we were not responsible for any “dangerous occurrences” during 2013. We
did have two separate accidents, which would have been reportable as “major or specified injuries”. These two
accidents both occurred during operations and were due to slips resulting in awkward falls and injury. Following
the investigation of these incidents, additional safety measures were put in place where appropriate to safeguard
against future reoccurrence.

Objectives
Nature set a number of non-financial objectives for 2013, focused on improved quality, health, safety and
environmental performance. Amongst those achieved were; the improved monitoring and measurement of
environmental aspects, gaining Green Award certification for the remaining eligible vessel in Rotterdam, the
implementation of a sophisticated incident management tool throughout the Group, and enhanced
communication strategies. Other objectives led to discernible improvements, despite the specific target not
being realised fully. Objectives have been set for 2014, which aim to further reduce and control our environmental
impact, enhance customer satisfaction, further improve reporting, and reduce accidents and work-related
injuries.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURE GROUP PLC
We have audited the group financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Nature Group plc for the year
ended 31 December 2013 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow
statement and the related notes 1 to 20. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Article 113A of the
Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility
is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require us to comply with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to indentify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:
•

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

•

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board; and

•

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

•

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Jonathan Tricker
for and on behalf of Deloitte Limited
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
Merchant House
22/24 John Mackintosh Square
Gibraltar
27 May 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2013

Notes
Continuing operations
Revenue
Other operating income

Audited
year to
2013
£

1
20

20,883,041 14,296,141
893,000
–

5

21,776,041 14,296,141

–––––––––––

Total Revenue
Cost of sales
Continuing operations

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

7,230,344

5,982,176

8
8

33,515
18,574
457,000
–
(4,744,416) (4,428,093)
(1,625,845) (1,398,202)
(12,901,025)
–
(42,330)
(45,169)
42,213
102,056
879,710
–

4

(10,670,834)
(409,614)

9

(11,080,448)
64,048

20
6,7
7

–––––––––––

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax expense

–––––––––––

(Loss)/profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year
Attributed to non-controlling interest

–––––––––––

(Loss)/profit after tax, before share based payments and
Group acquisition costs

(11,016,400)
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Earnings per share (pence)
Basic
Diluted
(Loss)/profit after tax, before share based payments and
Group acquisition costs

–––––––––––

(14,545,697) (8,313,965)

Operating profit
Interest income
Other income
Administrative costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Goodwill write off
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates after tax
Gain recognised on disposal of interest in former associate

Audited
year to
2012
£

16
16

–––––––––––

231,342
(75,954)
–––––––––––

155,388
(8,995)
–––––––––––

146,393
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

(13.895)
(13.823)

0.185
0.183

(11,016,400)

146,393

The notes on pages 29 to 44 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2013

Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Plant, vessels and equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Investment in associated company
Deferred tax assets

6
7
7
8
4

Audited
as at
2013
£

Audited
as at
2012
£

9,876,509 9,961,747
323,095 13,224,120
29,995
69,201
250
535,401
41,310
111,192
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

10,271,159 23,901,661

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Insurance recoveries on 3rd party claims
Corporate taxes
Stocks and work in progress
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

10

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

3,631,000
91,822
137,207
7,436,824
3,634,775

4,036,000
186,785
96,241
4,042,692
2,321,405

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Total current assets

14,931,628 10,683,123

Total assets

25,202,787 34,584,784

––––––––––––

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bank loans and overdrafts
Provision for 3rd party claims

11
12

(3,551,474) (2,229,581)
(1,486,324)
(355,252)
(3,631,000) (4,036,000)
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Non-current liabilities
Term loans

13

––––––––––––

15,414,049 26,773,821

Net assets

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Equity
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Share option reserve
Capital reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Profit and loss account

14
14

9

––––––––––––

15,430,691 26,727,974
(16,642)
45,847
––––––––––––

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

158,561
158,561
21,953,617 21,953,617
26,841
114,021
2,925,520 2,925,520
(527,478)
(246,595)
(9,106,370) 1,822,850
––––––––––––

Equity attributable to owners of the group
Non-controlling interest

––––––––––––

15,414,049 26,773,821
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Approved by the board on 27 May 2014.
Directors

The notes on pages 29 to 44 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(1,119,940) (1,190,130)
––––––––––––

K Becerra

––––––––––––

(8,668,798) (6,620,833)

Total current liabilities

A Drenthen

––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2013

At 1 January
2012

Share
Capital
Account
£

Share
Premium
Account
£

Share
Options
Reserve
£

Capital
Reserve
£

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Reserve
£

Profit
and Loss
Account
£

Attributable
to Owners
of the
Group
£

Noncontrolling
Interest
£

Total
Equity
£

157,561

21,917,117

114,021

2,925,520

(115,868)

1,676,457

26,674,808

–

26,674,808

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

–––––––––
–––––––––

1,000

36,500

–

–

–

–

37,500

–

37,500

FX consolidation
differences

–

–

–

–

(130,727)

–

(130,727)

–

(130,727)

Profit for the year

–

–

–

–

–

146,393

146,393

8,995

155,388

Sales and
acquisitions of
non-controlling
interest

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

36,852

36,852

158,561 21,953,617
––––––––– –––––––––
–––––––––
–––––––––

114,021
–––––––––
–––––––––

2,925,520
–––––––––
–––––––––

Ordinary shares
issued

At 31 December
2012

(246,595) 1,822,850 26,727,974
––––––––– –––––––––
––––––––– –––––––––
–––––––––
–––––––––

45,847 26,773,821
––––––––– –––––––––
–––––––––
–––––––––

Share options
movement in
reserve

–

–

(87,180)

–

–

87,180

–

–

-

FX consolidation
differences

–

–

–

–

(280,883)

–

(280,883)

1,559

(279,324)

Loss for the year

–

–

–

–

– (11,016,400) (11,016,400)

(64,048) (11,080,448)

158,561 21,953,617
––––––––– –––––––––
–––––––––
–––––––––

26,841
–––––––––
–––––––––

2,925,520
–––––––––
–––––––––

(527,478) (9,106,370) 15,430,691
––––––––– –––––––––
––––––––– –––––––––
–––––––––
–––––––––

(16,642) 15,414,049
––––––––– –––––––––
–––––––––
–––––––––

At 31 December
2013

The notes on pages 29 to 44 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2013
Audited
year to
2013
£

Audited
year to
2012
£

(Loss)/profit for the year before taxation

(10,670,834)

231,342

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
(Increase)/decrease in stock
Increase in debtors
Increase in creditors
Foreign exchange differences
Consolidated goodwill write off

1,625,845 1,398,202
(40,966)
23,347
(3,394,132)
(234,231)
888,770
207,505
(315,334)
(130,727)
12,901,025
–

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to net cash flow from
operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

994,374

1,495,438

Investing activities:
Net decrease/(increase) in investments
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets

573,360
(114,793)
(1,500,562) (2,044,109)
(3,802)
(1,889)

Financing activities:
Cash consideration from issuance of shares net of issuance costs
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Proceeds from investments by non-controlling interest

–
1,250,000
–

37,500
–
36,852

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

Increase/(decrease) in cash balances

1,313,370
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents during the year:
Balance at start of year
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

2,321,405
1,313,370
––––––––––––

Balance at end of year

2,912,406
(591,001)
––––––––––––

3,634,775

2,321,405

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

The notes on pages 29 to 44 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
1

Accounting policies
Reporting entity

Nature Group plc is a company domiciled in Jersey and was admitted to the Alternative Investment
Market (AIM) in September 2001. As a result there is no one controlling party. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group as at and for the year to 31 December 2013 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (see note 8) and the Group’s interest in an associated company.
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”), and in accordance with Jersey Law.
During the period, the Group adopted all new and revised IFRS and International Accounting
Standards (IAS), which are relevant and applicable to its operations. Standards and amendments
that have been published but are not effective as yet, the Group has chosen not to adopt early.
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, some standards were in issue but not yet
effective. The directors expect that the adoption of these standards in future periods will not have
a material effect on the financial statements of the Group.
In accordance with Article 105(11) of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, the parent company is
not required to present separate parent company only financial statements, as consolidated
financial statements have been presented.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Nature Group plc
and all its subsidiary undertakings (subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. Income and expenses of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates. The most significant judgements made relate to the following:
•

The calculation of the share based payments expense – the expense has been calculated in
line with the Black-Scholes model, which requires significant judgement to be exercised in
calculating management’s best estimate of the inputs that should be applied to the model
on the grant date of each tranche of options, for example in relation to the expected life of
each option, the expected dividend yield, and the volatility to be applied.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

•

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cashgenerating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
The carrying amount of the goodwill at 31 December 2013 was £323,095, after goodwill
write off of £12,901,025 was recognised during the year.

•

At the time of the incident, the Group was covered under its liability insurance policy for claims
up to £10,000,000. The Group’s insurer has administered claims received from 3rd parties
as a result of the incident and based on estimates applied to information received from the
insurer, the Group has provided for £3,631,000 for those claims with a resultant £3,631,000
receivable arising from the expected recoveries from the insurer.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed
in Pounds Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency
for the consolidated financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the dates when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they occur.
For the purposes of preparing consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are expressed in Pounds Sterling using exchange rates prevailing at
the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the
Group’s foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
Revenue

Revenue is derived from the provision of services and is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at the reporting
date on an accruals basis.
Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed
to date relative to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative
of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.
Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.
Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown within trade and other receivables. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date, plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as sundry creditors and accruals. Amounts received before the related work is performed are
included in the consolidated balance sheet, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated balance sheet under trade
and other receivables.

Plant, vessels and equipment
Items of plant, vessels and equipment are measured at cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset in bringing it into
use.
Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis
on all plant and equipment to write off their cost less residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The rates in use on a straight line basis are:
Plant, machinery
Vessels
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

over 5-20 years
over 5-7 years
over 3-5 years
over 4 years

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisitions of subsidiaries. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
acquiree. Goodwill is measured at cost. An annual impairment review is undertaken and impairment losses
are not reversed.

Development costs, patents and licences
Costs involved in technical assistance and knowledge to install new plants, together with the costs to
obtain the related patents and licences are capitalised as intangible assets and amortised over their
expected useful lives as follows:
Licences
Patents
Development costs

4 years
20 years
5-10 years

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.
The results of operations and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)
Under the equity method, investments in associates or joint venture are carried in the statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any longterm interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.

Tax
(i)

Current tax
Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years or that are never taxable or deductible. The
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted, or substantially enacted,
by the balance sheet date.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in full where the carrying value of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements is different to the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except where it relates to items charged or credited directly to reserves,
when it is charged or credited there.

Stocks
Stocks are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The costs of stocks are calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Capital reserve
The Capital reserve arose predominantly in 2004 following a restructure of the issued share capital. This
reserve is distributable to shareholders.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits held by the Company with an
original maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of these approximates their fair value.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their fair value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their fair value.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 15.

Segmental information
Segmental information is provided in note 5 showing the amount of revenue from each geographical
market.

2

(Loss)/profit for the year

(Loss)/profit for the year is stated after recognising:
Directors’ emoluments
Employee costs
Consolidated goodwill write off
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditor’s remuneration
Foreign exchange gains

2013
£

2012
£

580,667
4,569,590
12,901,025
1,585,800
40,045
119,037
35,548

610,200
3,232,554
–
1,351,844
46,358
109,880
54,734

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Other services provided by the Group Auditors amount to £14,465 (2012: £24,630).
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Revenue from construction contracts
The Group has materially completed its project to design, build and install a slops and sludge facility in the port
of Duqm in Oman with only the provision of training to the operators remaining outstanding at the year end.
The total value of the contract to the Group is US$ 4,200,000, at 31 December 2013 the contract remains
97.5% complete (2012: 97.5%) with an expected margin to be achieved of 2.17% (2012: 2.17%). In accordance
with IAS 11 Construction Contracts, the Group has not recognised any income in 2013 (2012: £330,364) in
relation to the contract but has invoiced 2.5% (2012: 7.5%) amounting to £67,234 (2012: £198,484), but
recognised expenses of £15,026 (2012: £412,057).
During 2013, the Group was awarded a second major contract from Interserve Defence Ltd, on behalf of the
MOD, worth £2.13 million in revenue over approximately nine months, for carrying out additional civil works for
the treatment facility already being built by Nature Group on one of the overseas territories for the treatment of
oil contaminated waste from the MOD base and Royal Naval fleet in the region.
The Group has materially completed its first contract from Interserve Defence Ltd, to design, build and install
the waste treatment facility. The directors estimated that the contract was 99.8% complete at 31 December
2013, therefore out of a full contract value of £2,431,490, £2,338,403 of income was recognised during 2013
(2012: £87,080), at an expected margin of 25%. The installation is planned to be commissioned and operational
in the second half of 2014.
On the second major contract for the civil works described above, the project is 46% complete in the directors’
view, with £987,334 of the total income recognised during 2013. The expected margin on this contract is 23%.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes revenue from long-term contracts of £664,615 (2012:
£nil) in relation to the Sunborn Project. The costs of sale recognised in relation to the Sunborn Project total
£1,483,364, reflecting the loss expected on the contract of £818,749, management continue in negotiations
with the Government of Gibraltar for compensation of the extra costs incurred.

4

Income tax

Current tax
The tax charge is comprised of the following charges/(credits) for tax in the following subsidiaries:

Nature Environmental Technologies Limited
Nature Port Reception Facilities (Gibraltar) Limited
Nature International Slop Disposal BV
Ecoscrub Solutions BV
Nature Oil and Gas AS
NPRF Portugal – Serviços Maritimas Ambientais S.A.
Nature Shipping Agency
Residuos Y Transportes Marpol SL

2013
£

2012
£

(5,455)
58,369
80,386
(898)
313,471
(39,651)
215
3,177

(18,249)
36,783
221,426
1,992
(173,502)
7,504
–
–

–––––––––––

Total

–––––––––––

409,614

75,954

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

The Company is an exempt company under the Income Tax (Jersey) Law 1961. Consequently it is liable to pay
a flat £600 per annum which is included in administrative costs.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have been recognised as a separate line item on the consolidated balance sheet under
non-current assets.

NPRF Portugal – Serviços Maritimas Ambientais S.A.
Nature Oil and Gas AS

2013
£

2012
£

41,310
–

–
111,192

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

41,310

111,192

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities have been recognised within trade and other payables (see note 11).

Nature Port Reception Facilities (Gibraltar) Limited
Nature International Slop Disposal BV
Nature Oil and Gas AS

5

2013
£

2012
£

79,402
430,701
30,699

79,402
444,605
–

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

540,802

524,007

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Business and geographical segments

Business segments
For management purposes the Group is organised into three operating activities. These are the reception and
treatment of waste liquids in onshore locations (maritime), the provision of offshore treatment modules (oil &
gas) and the design and supply of equipment for polluted waste water constant flow treatment solutions utilising
Group intellectual property and certain patent rights (engineering).
Geographical segments
The Group’s operations are based in Gibraltar, The Netherlands, Norway, Malta, Portugal and the UK/Jersey.
The collection and treatment divisions are located in Gibraltar, The Netherlands, Portugal and Norway and the
design and supply of equipment is carried out in Norway and the UK.

Revenue
2013
£
Gibraltar
Norway – wholly owned and associates
The Netherlands
Malta
Portugal
Spain
UK/Jersey – Operational
– Group office (intra Group charges
excluded)

3,830,928
4,271,401
7,571,920
–
1,541,062
–
4,560,730
–
––––––––––––

Total

Revenue
2012
£

Profit
before tax
2013
£

2,991,374
538,893
807,195
1,143,173 1,289,130 (1,133,926)
7,097,340
284,330
861,726
– (1,617,519) (1,492,025)
131,711
465,095
27,493
–
(26,429)
–
2,932,543 2,019,633 1,551,965
– (13,623,967)
–––––––––––

–––––––––––

21,776,041 14,296,141 (10,670,834)
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Profit
before tax
2012
£

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

(391,086)
–––––––––––

231,342
–––––––––––
–––––––––––
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Business and geographical segments (continued)
The following table provides an analysis of total assets and total liabilities, by geographical market:
Total
assets
2013
£
Gibraltar
Norway – wholly owned and associates
Netherlands
Malta
Portugal
UK/Jersey Operational
Spain
Group office

9,346,678
2,541,115
7,286,787
(1,557,170)
191,362
1,410,316
205,860
5,777,839
––––––––––––

Total

Total
assets
2012
£

Total
liabilities
2013
£

Total
liabilities
2012
£

8,098,006 (5,348,832) (4,616,402)
866,823
(454,711)
(273,341)
7,125,781 (2,351,892) (2,550,895)
(968,931)
(77,675)
(97,875)
294,903
(228,344)
(193,021)
1,212,850
(21,366)
(14,290)
–
(96)
–
17,955,352 (1,305,822)
(65,139)
–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

25,202,787 34,584,784 (9,788,738) (7,810,963)
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Vessels
£

Plant &
Machinery
£

Office
Equipment
£

Motor
Vehicles
£

Cost
As at 1 January 2012
13,113,249 7,124,615
Currency translation adjustment
265,245
332,215
Additions at cost
1,929,071
616,783
Disposals at cost
(5,475)
–
Acquisitions through business combinations
2,913
–

5,813,334
(67,611)
1,276,019
(5,475)
–

78,418
641
34,269
–
2,913

96,882
–
2,000
–
–
–––––––––––

6

Plant, vessels and equipment
Total
£

As at 1 January 2013

––––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

15,305,003

8,073,613

7,016,267

116,241

98,882

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

84,233
244,935
54,052 1,557,926
(433,630)
(6,052)
–
6,678

36,079
21,160
(2,003)
7,751

–
–
–
37,036
–––––––––––

Currency translation adjustment
365,247
Additions at cost
1,633,138
Disposals at cost
(441,685)
Acquisitions through business combinations
51,465
As at 31 December 2013
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2012
Currency translation adjustment
Disposals
Charge for the year
As at 1 January 2013

––––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

16,913,168

7,778,268

8,819,754

179,228

135,918

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

3,843,768 1,212,440
153,078
500,412
(5,434)
–
1,351,844
843,500

2,495,443
(328,072)
(5,434)
476,054

45,678
(13,763)
–
23,739

90,207
(5,499)
–
8,551
–––––––––––

––––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

5,343,256

2,556,352

2,637,991

55,654

93,259

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

374,948
(4,918)
3,321
665,149

11,583
(328)
4,431
34,867

–
–
14,219
10,650
–––––––––––

Currency translation adjustment
417,189
Disposals
(331,557)
Acquisitions through business combinations
21,971
Charge for the year
1,585,800
As at 31 December 2013
Net book value
As at 31 December 2013
As at 31 December 2012
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30,658
(326,311)
–
875,134

––––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

7,036,659

3,135,833

3,676,491

106,207

118,128

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

9,876,509

4,642,435

5,143,263

73,021

17,790

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

9,961,747

5,517,261

4,378,276

60,587

5,623

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––
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Goodwill and other intangible assets
Development
Total
costs
£
£

Cost
As at 1 January 2012
Currency translation adjustment

13,868,410
8,433

As at 1 January 2013
Currency translation adjustment
Additions at cost
Consolidated goodwill write off*

13,876,843
(36,124)
3,802
(12,901,025)

––––––––––––

Balance at 31 December 2013
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2012
Currency translation adjustment
Charge for the year
As at 1 January 2013
Currency translation adjustment
Charge for the year
As at 31 December 2013
Net book value
As at 31 December 2013
As at 31 December 2012

Goodwill
£

Patents
£

Licences
£

286,945 13,442,025
7,240
–

47,267
1,193

92,173
–

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

294,185 13,442,025
(31,015)
–
3,802
–
– (12,901,025)

48,460
(5,109)
–
–

92,173
–
–
–
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

943,496

266,972

541,000

43,351

92,173

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

530,619
6,546
46,358

199,590
6,017
43,935

217,905
–
–

20,951
529
2,423

92,173
–
–

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

217,905
–
–

23,903
(2,899)
6,215

92,173
–
–
––––––––––––

583,523
(33,162)
40,045

249,542
(30,263)
33,830

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

590,406

253,109

217,905

27,219

92,173

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

353,090

13,863

323,095

16,132

–

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

13,293,320
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

44,643 13,224,120
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

24,557

–

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

*The consolidated goodwill created when Nature Group Plc merged with International Slop Disposal B.V was written off during the year.
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Subsidiary undertakings and associated companies

Subsidiary undertakings
The Company held, through wholly owned subsidiaries or directly, 100% of the issued share capital of the
following principal trading subsidiaries (unless otherwise stated) all of which operate in the waste treatment or
maritime services sectors and have been consolidated in the Group’s financial statements:
Name
Nature Environmental Technologies Limited
Nature Environmental Solutions Limited
Nature International Slop Disposal BV
Ecoscrub Solutions BV
Nature Oil and Gas AS*
Nature Port Reception Facilities (Gibraltar) Limited
Nature Shipping Agency Limited
Nature Port Reception Facilities (Malta) Limited
Nature Group Trading Limited
Nature Oil and Gas Holdings Limited**
Nature Port Reception Facilities Holdings Limited**
Crystalwater Navigation Limited
NPRF Portugal – Serviços Marítimas Ambientais S.A.***
Residuos Transportes Marpol S.A ****

Country of incorporation
UK
Jersey
Netherlands
Netherlands
Norway
Gibraltar
Gibraltar
Malta
Jersey
Jersey
Jersey
Malta
Portugal
Spain

*Nature Oil and Gas was formerly Nature Technology Solutions AS and Northern Treatment AS which were merged on 1 January 2012.
**Did not trade during the year.
***NPRF Portugal – Serviços Marítimas Ambientais S.A. was incorporated on 18 June 2012. (55% stake owned)
**** Residuos Transportes Marpol S.A was purchased on 19 Dec 2013

Associated companies
During the year the Company sold its 40% share in onshore treatment facility SAR Treatment AS (“SART”) a
company incorporated in Norway. The shares were sold for a total consideration of £1,453,320 giving rise to a
profit of £879,710. In the year ended 31 December 2013 Nature’s share of SARTs generated profits after tax
were £42,213 (2012: £102,056).
At 31 December 2013 Nature Group Plc held a 50% (£250) shareholding in Nature Oil & Gas Aberdeen Limited.

9
Non-controlling Interest
On 1 August 2012, Nature Group plc, through its subsidiary, Nature Port Reception Facilities Holdings Limited
(“NPRF Holdings”), signed an agreement with the Portuguese company Ecosourcing Gestão Ambiental
Energética Lda (“Ecosourcing”) and established Nature Port Reception Facilities Portugal (“NPRF Portugal”) –
Servicos Maritimos Ambientais S.A. The entity is 55% owned by NPRF Holdings and 45% by Ecosourcing.
Shown below are the amounts constituting Ecosourcing’s non-controlling interest in NPRF Portugal.

Investment in NPRF Portugal
Share of (loss)/profit for the year
Share of translation adjustment for the year

2013
£

2012
£

45,847
(64,048)
1,559

36,782
8,995
70

–––––––––––

(16,642)
–––––––––––
–––––––––––
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45,847
–––––––––––
–––––––––––
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Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors
Other debtors and prepayments
Accrued income
Loan Global Environment & Marine Services Inc (“GEMS”)

2013
£

2012
£

3,926,560
3,009,623
64,044
436,597

2,471,207
1,373,001
198,484
–

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

7,436,824

4,042,692

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

The loan to GEMS is at 8% interest. On 1 April 2014, the Company invested a total of US$ 1,700,000 to acquire
the assets of Global Environmental & Marine Services, Inc (“GEMS”), a maritime waste management company
located in Texas, USA. The acquired assets will be held within a new company, Nature Environmental & Marine
Services, LLC (“NEMS”), which will be 65% owned by Nature Group and 35% owned by the current owner of
GEMS.
Included in other debtors this year, is the £1,350,000 insurance settlement as disclosed in note 20 which was
received on 8 May 2014.

11

Trade and other payables

Trade creditors
Sundry creditors and accruals
Deferred tax liabilities
Term loan from SAR AS

2013
£

2012
£

1,573,130
1,437,542
540,802
–

1,035,097
588,640
524,007
81,837

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

3,551,474

2,229,581

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Repayment of the unsecured loan from SAR AS commenced in 2010 and ended in 2013. The loan bore interest
at a variable rate of 1% over NIBOR. SAR AS was a related party as that entity owns the remainder of the share
capital of SAR Treatment AS.

12

Bank loans and overdraft

Bank overdraft
Term loan “Humber Mist”
Finance facility Lombard

2013
£

2012
£

205,578
30,746
1,250,000

355,252
–
–

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

1,486,324

355,252

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Nature Group plc entered into a finance agreement with Lombard (Gibraltar) for a £1,250,000 facility, currently
on a short term three month rollover. This is secured with a £250,000 deposit.
The loan for Humber Mist carries interest at a rate of 3.5% over LIBOR, is secured by a mortgage on that vessel,
and is due for repayment on June 2014.
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Non-current liabilities

Group
Term loan “Humber Mist”
Term loan ING Bank

2013
£

2012
£

–
1,119,940

107,605
1,082,525

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

1,111,940

1,190,130

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

ING Bank has issued two mortgage loans. The loans are due for repayment by and during 2025. The interest
rate applicable is 3 months Euribor plus 2%.
During the year ING Bank N.V. issued a further loan of €200,000. The loan is to be repaid within 5 years. The
interest rate applicable is 3.44%.

14

Called-up share capital

Authorised:
750,000,000 (2012: 750,000,000) Ordinary shares of 0.2p each

2013
£

2012
£

1,500,000

1,500,000

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

£

£

Issued, called-up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares
79,280,655 (2012: 79,280,655) Ordinary shares of 0.2p each

158,561

157,561

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

Below is a reconciliation of the share capital issued at 31 December 2013:

2013
Shares

At beginning of year
Exercise of options

79,280,655
–

At end of year

79,280,655

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

40

Share
capital
£

2012
Share
premium
£

Shares

158,561 21,953,617 78,780,655
–
–
500,000
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

––––––––––––

158,561 21,953,617 79,280,655
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

Share
capital
£

Share
premium
£

157,561 21,917,117
1,000
36,500
––––––––––––

––––––––––––

158,561 21,953,617
––––––––––––
––––––––––––

––––––––––––
––––––––––––
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15 Share-based payments
Employee share option plan
The Group has a share option plan for employees and directors, under which individuals are granted options
to subscribe for shares at a strike price based on the quoted trading price of Nature Group plc on the date of
grant, in exchange for services granted to the Group. The options vest on issue and expire after 3 years. The
resignation of the holder of an option from the Group does not affect the rights of the holder to exercise the
option prior to or at such resignation date. Each share option becomes one ordinary share of Nature Group plc
on exercise. No amounts are paid or payable by the recipient on receipt of the option. The options carry neither
rights to dividends nor vesting rights. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date
of their expiry or the date of cessation of employment whichever is the sooner.
The following options were outstanding at 31 December 2013:

Options series
1

Employees

Exercise
price

Expiry date

120,000

68p

January 2014

Options were priced using the Black-Scholes model. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has
been adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the effects of exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility over the previous period
equivalent to the expected life of each series.
The following recompiles the outstanding share options granted under employees share option plan at the
beginning and end of the financial year.
Number of options
2013
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Expired during the financial year
Exercised during the financial year
Balance at end of the financial year

16

2012

799,500 1,299,500
(679,500)
–
–
(500,000)

Weighted average
exercise price
2013
2012
41p
36p
–

29p
–
10p
–––––––––––

––––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

120,000

799,500

68p

41p

––––––––––––
––––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

2013

2012

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares in issue
Basic earnings per share (pence)

(11,016,400)
146,393
79,280,655 79,123,121
(13.895)
0.185

Diluted Earnings per Share
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to shareholders
Diluted average number of equity shares in issue
Diluted earnings per share (pence)

(11,016,400)
146,393
79,696,739 79,922,621
(13.823)
0.183
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Operating lease commitments

Operating leases
The Group had the following non-cancellable annual operating lease commitments on leases which expired
within the following periods after the year-end:
2013
£
Not longer than 1 year

2012
£

–

71,377

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

18 Related party transactions
All related party transactions including transactions with directors are disclosed within the directors’ report or
the notes to these financial statements, with the exception of the following:
During the year ended and as at 31 December 2013, Nature International Slop Disposal BV had the following
related party transactions where A Drenthen is a shareholder of Fendercare Benelux BV and Port Invest BV:

Name of Entity
Burando Customs Services
Burando Holding
Burando Rental Services
Fendercare Benelux BV
FTS Hofftrans BV
Royal Tankers
Service Terminal Rotterdam vof
Ship Invest
Ship Spares Logistics

Net
Sales
£

Costs
of Sale
£

Debtors
£

Creditors
£

1,776
346
19,549
187,839
4,742
19,064
136,732
–
5,987

–
–
–
–
811,082
–
41,860
209,003
–

–
–
23,242
20,853
–
–
12,073
–
358

–
346
–
368
11,177
458
885
–
3,017

19 Financial instruments and risk management
The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash on deposit and in current accounts, and other
items such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables that arise directly from operations.
Their main purpose is to finance the Group’s trading activities. The Group’s policy is to ensure that adequate
cash is available for this purpose. It does not trade in financial instruments and has not entered into any derivative
transactions.
The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not considered to be materially different from their
book values.
Interest rate risk
Materially all the Group’s borrowings of £2.6 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: £1.5m) are at variable rates
over their respective currency bank base rates; consequently, an adverse movement of 1% per annum would
create an additional charge to profits of some £26,000 per annum. Conversely, ‘free’ cash of approximately
£3.6 million (2012: £2.3m) is mostly held on short term deposits, at rates of up to 2% p.a. Thus, at the year
end, and at the date of this report an upward movement in interest rates would be marginally beneficial to the
Group, although this could change in the future when the Group’s activities in Gibraltar and elsewhere continue
to expand. It is anticipated that fixed installations such as treatment plants and storage tanks will be financed
by longer term borrowings as well as operational cash flow.
Liquidity risk
The directors monitor the Group’s cash flow and bank balances on a continuous basis to ensure there is
sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated needs. In view of the Group’s net cash surplus, liquidity is not considered
to be a material risk for the foreseeable future.
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Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Credit risk
The Group’s on-going trading policy is to deal only with recognised creditworthy third parties and its historical
bad debt experience has been minimal. Of the trade and other receivables of £7.4 million at 31 December,
£1.07 million related to Interserve Defence Limited. Since the year-end the full amount has been received. These
receivables were the only ones representing more than 10% of Group receivables.
Commodity risk
The only commodity risk to which the Group is potentially exposed is the price of oil. However, in practice the
prices which are obtained for recovered oil are not directly related to the fluctuating market for crude, and the
Group protects itself by selling at prearranged fixed prices which did not change in 2013 or 2012.
Foreign currency risk
The Group has significant transactional currency exposures in Euros, US Dollars and Norwegian Kroner on an
on-going basis. A significant element of the transactional exposure in Euros and Norwegian Kroner is naturally
hedged due to both costs and sales being made in the same currencies. Steps are taken where possible to
minimise the effect of US dollar fluctuations.
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table sets out the foreign currency risk relating to balances denominated in Euros (“EUR”),
Norwegian Kroner (“NOK”) and US dollars (“USD”) where those currencies are the functional currencies of the
operating units, and translated into sterling at the year-end exchange rate.

Year end exchange rate with
GBP used
Stocks and work in progress
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Cash and short term deposits
Loans payable within
one year
Long term loans payable
Total

Currency value giving rise to risk
USD
EUR
NOK
2013
2012
2012
£’000
£’000
£’000

EUR
2013
£’000

NOK
2013
£’000

USD
2012
£’000

1.198
58
2,838
(1,061)
760

10.099
11
533
(424)
531

1.649
39
270
–
22

1.223
10
2,277
(1,357)
1,081

9.034
6
252
(188)
40

1.617
25
316
–
154

(206)
(1,120)

–
–

–
–

(352)
(1,083)

(86)
–

–
–

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

–––––––––––

1,269

651

331

566

24

495

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––
–––––––––––

–––––––––––

A 10% increase or decrease in the year end exchange rate would have had the following net impact:
10% Increase, in £’000
10% Decrease, in £’000

(115)
141

(59)
72

(30)
37

(53)
64

(2)
3

(45)
55
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Events after the balance sheet date

Settlement with insurer
As previously reported, on 31 May 2011, an explosion followed by a fire occurred in one of the tanks located
alongside the treatment plant in Gibraltar. The Group claimed a total of £3.1 million under its material damage
policy for property damage and business interruption; however the insurer denied cover under the policy. The
insurer’s decision was contested and on 16 April 2014 the Group entered into an agreement with the insurer
whereby they received £457,000 (recognised as “other income” below operating profit) for the property damage
claim and £893,000 (recognised as “other operating income” within revenue) for business interruption.
This settlement is treated as an adjusting event.
Planning application approval
Following the incident on 31 May 2011, the Group has not been allowed to use its treatment plant or the storage
tanks alongside it – revenues are derived in Gibraltar from collection only. In July 2013 the Group in Gibraltar
submitted a planning application to the Gibraltar authorities to rebuild the storage tank area and on 10 April
2014 approval for this was granted.
The reconstruction of the tanks and facilities is expected to take up to 12 months and the new facility will be
able to store waste oil products, thereby reducing current logistical challenges attributed to, and dependence
on, floating storage only.
Investment in assets of Global Environment & Marine Services Inc (“GEMS”)
As noted in note 10, on 1 April 2014 the Company purchased a holding in the assets of GEMS, a maritime
waste management company located in Texas, USA.

44

Report and accounts 2013

Report and accounts 2013

NOTICE OF AN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
To the Members of Nature Group plc
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of this Company will be held at Ordnance House,
31 Pier Road, St. Helier, Jersey JE4 8PW, at 13.00 on Wednesday, 18 June 2014, to conduct the following
business:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions numbered 1 to 4
Resolution 1:

To receive and consider the report of the directors and the financial statements of the Company
for the period to 31 December 2013, with the auditors report thereon.

Resolution 2:

To authorise payment of a final dividend of 0.28p per Ordinary share in respect of 2013.

Resolution 3:

To re-appoint Deloitte Limited as auditors.

Resolution 4:

To authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors.

To transact any other business which may be properly transacted at an annual general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
J Shalders
Ordnance House
31 Pier Road
St Helier
Jersey, Channel Islands
JE4 8PW
Dated: 27 May 2014
A Member entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his
behalf, and Proxy so appointed need not also be a Member of the Company.

Notes:
1.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. Any member may appoint another person (whether a
member of the Company or not) as his proxy to attend and, on a poll, vote in his stead. A form of proxy is enclosed for use by
holders of Ordinary shares. Proxies must be lodged at the office of the Company’s registrar, Computershare Services (Channel
Islands) Limited, Queensway House, Hilgrove Street, St. Helier, Jersey JE4 9XY, Channel Islands before the time of the meeting.

2.

These reports and financial statements will be tabled at the Annual General Meeting. Copies will be available at and can be obtained
on written request to the Registrars, Queensway House, Hilgrove Street, St. Helier, Jersey JE4 9XY, Channel Islands.
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NATURE GROUP PLC
FORM OF PROXY
I/We, ..........................................................................................................................................................,
of ..............................................................................................................................................................,
being a member/members of the above-named Company, do hereby nominate and appoint
..................................................................................................................................................................
of ................................................................................................................................................................
or failing him, The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the above-mentioned Company, to be held at 13.00 on 18 June 2014, and at any
adjournments thereof.
Resolutions

For

Against

1. Adoption of the directors’ report and financial statements.
2. Approval of the final dividend of 0.28p per share.
3. Re-appointment of Deloitte Limited as auditors.
4. Authorisation of the Directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors.
Please indicate how you wish your proxy to vote in respect of the special resolutions detailed on your notice,
by placing an “X” in the boxes desired. Unless otherwise instructed, the Proxy will vote or abstain as he/she
thinks fit. The proxy will act in his/her discretion in relation to any other business arising at the Meeting (including
any resolution to adjourn the Meeting).
Dated this..............................day of .................................2014
INDIVIDUAL:
Signed by the said:

......................................................................................................

Name:

......................................................................................................

CORPORATION:
The Common Seal of

......................................................................................................

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:

......................................................................................................
Director

......................................................................................................
Director/Company Secretary

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorised in writing, or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under seal, or under the hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Notes:

✃

(1) In the case of joint holdings the signature of one holder will suffice, but the names of all joint holders should be shown.
(2) Completion and return of this form of proxy will not preclude the member from attending and voting in person at the Meeting. However, a vote
given or poll demanded by a proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous determination of the authority of the proxy, unless notice of such
determination is received by the Company at the registered office of the Company or, if the relevant form of proxy was deposited at the
Company’s Registrars’ office, its registrars’ office before the commencement of the Meeting or, if the Meeting is adjourned, the adjourned
Meeting at which the vote is given or the poll demanded, or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise than on the same day as the Meeting or
adjourned Meeting) the time appointed for taking the poll.
(3) Any alteration or deletion must be signed or initialled.
(4) The Chairman of the Meeting will act as proxy unless any other proxy is desired, in which case the member should insert the full name of the
proxy in the space provided above.
(5) To be effective this proxy must be deposited with The Registrars (Computershare Investor Services Jersey Ltd, Queensway House, Hilgrove
Street, St. Helier, Jersey JE4 9XY, Channel Islands) not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting or any adjourned Meeting.

Number of shares held: ....................................................
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Our vision.
At Nature, we put safety, sustainability and environmental protection at the core of our business strategy.
Our mission is to maintain the clean, pollution-free seas required not only for regulatory compliance, but
also for the overall health of our natural environment.
For twenty-ﬁve years, Nature has contributed to cleaner seas by collecting wastewaters, processing them
with biological treatment methods, and returning over 90% of the cleaned wastewater to the sea in
accordance with strict environmental regulations. Recovered oil, meanwhile, is recycled for use in a range
of different industries..

are possible by Nature

Clean seas. Your choice. Our mission.

Nature Group PLC (Head ofﬁce)
Ordnance House
31 Pier Road
St. Helier / Jersey
JE4 8PW
E-mail: info@ngrp.com

